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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 2019,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
r,#ndxwe do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In aﬁrﬂectmn with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to rafad;’ the other information and, In doing so, consider whether the other Information is
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materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be malerially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists., Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregale,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
“responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
'-t& \provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
. rrﬂb:llmq from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may [nvolve
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collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of Internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern,

» FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced, We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone linancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
i '.'-‘-m best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

‘.

“13' \In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
4 )COF‘I’IPE!I'I'I_.F so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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c)

d)

e)

q)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Acl.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 frem being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A". Our reporl expresses an
unmadified opinion an the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during
the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements. (Refer Note 31)

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. (Refer Note
38)

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. (Refer Note
39)
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)
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Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29 2019
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fleur Hotels
| Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the Internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards en Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and If such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reparting.

— —Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

| ==

-
1£§ifﬁpdnv'5 internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
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preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
systemn over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No, 1 17366W f W-100018)
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':Il r sl ol | " Vijay Agarwal

L\ b A (Partner)
=& % {Membership No. 094468)

Place: New Delhi
Date; May |, 2019
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(1)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all
the items in a phased manner over a period of two years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets, Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given ta us, no discrepancies were noticed
on such wverification.

(c) According to the information, explanations given to us, and the records
examined by us, we report that:

i, based on examination of the confirmation received by us from "Vistra

ITCL (India) Limited” (custodian) on behalf of Yes Bank and

confirmation received from Kotak Mahindra Bank in respect of

immovable properties (freehold land and buildings disclosed as fixed

asset in the financial statements), whose title deeds have been

pledged as security for loans, are held in the name of the Company.

ii. based on the examination of the registered sale deeds and
conveyance deeds of remaining immovable properties of freehold
land provided to us, such immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the period
by the Management at reasonable intervals and no discrepancies were noticed

on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of making investments. The Company has not granted any
loans, made investments or provide guarantees under Section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013. As per Section 186 (11) read with Schedule VI,
provisions of Section 186 with respect to grant of loans and providing
quarantees would not apply to the Company as the Company is providing
infrastructural facilities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

o \}Eﬂ: accepted any deposit during the year.
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(vi)

{wvii)

{viil)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of
cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, hence reporting under clause (vi) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 ("CARO 2016") is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations glven to us, in respect of
statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Employees’ State Insurance, Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales
tax, Value added tax, Goods and Services tax, cess and other material
statutary dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. Also refer to
the note 31(e) in the financial statement regarding management
assessment on certain matters relating to the provident fund.

We are informed that Customs duty and Excise duty is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Value added tax,
Goods and Services tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

We are informed that Customs duty and Excise duty is not applicable to
the Company.

(c) There are no dues of Income tax, Sales tax, Customs duty, Value added
tax and Excise duty which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2019
on account of disputes. Details of dues of Service tax which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2019 on account of disputes are glven below:

Name | Mature Forum where Period to Amount®
of of Dues Dispute is which the (Rs. in
Statut Pending Amount lacs)
e o Relates
Service | Service Central Excise | October 2010 to | 59.28
Tax tax and Service Tax | March 2011
Rule, Appellate tribunal
11994

* Net of Rs. 23.10 lacs paid under protest

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company
has not taken any loans or berrowings from financial institutions, government
or issued any debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,;
the term loan have been applied by the Company during the year for the
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(x}

(x1)

(xii)

{xili)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

purposes for which they were raised. The company has not raised any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not pald / provided managerial remuneration under the provisions of section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under clause (xi) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xli) of
the CARD 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company s in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013, for all transactions with the related parties entered during the period and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence
reporting under clause (xiv) of CARQ 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinlon and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year, the Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or persons connected
with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are

not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause (xvi) of
CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

e

2.1

2.2

(@)

Corporate Information
Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and is

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Aet applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located al Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-

110037,

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, ete, under the brand
name of Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier and Red Fox Hotel.

The financial statements are approved for issue in aceordance with a resolution of the directors
on May 29, 2019,

Basis of preparation

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 ('the Act'} (to the extent notified) The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an acerual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets. and
linbilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 33 below)

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision o an existing account standard required a change to

the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a linbility

for at least twelve months after the reporting period

~ Silie - All other assets are classified as non-current.
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(b)

A liability is current when:

It is expected ta be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months afler the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-currenl.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and linbilities,

The operating cycle is the time between (he acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its

operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currvency

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company's linancial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash, All the financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, excepl where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
L]

Exchanpe differences arising on seftlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profil or loss,

respectively).

SKIN &
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‘Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an /
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orderly transaction between market participanls at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advaniageous market for the assel or

liahility
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
acl in their economic best interest.

A Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inlo account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use ol relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are eateporised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indivectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing eategorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recuring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured al Fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer, The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques

and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-nssessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and

other relevant documents.

.." [Ty W “ . w
w5 & _The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
\‘change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources (o determine

ebet 1I'| 'jiir'.%uthnr the change is reasonable.
.-"I L .'_.

“_For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
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level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 29)
= Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy {note 33)
« Financial instruments (including those carried at amartised cost) (note 33)

(ul) Revenue vecognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from the business of carrying developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, ete. under the brand
of Lemon Tree Premier, Lemon Tree Hotel and Red Fox Hotel.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Coniracts with
Customers™ which establishes a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of
revenue to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS |15 using cumulative eateh-up
wansition method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard is recagnised os
at the date of initial application (i.e April 1, 2018). The standard is applied only to contracts
that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in
the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information continues to
be reported under previous standards on revenue i.e Ind AS 13 and Ind AS 11. There was no
impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 to the financial statements of the Company.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinet performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has
measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price, The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is

the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty, The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criterin to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent, The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements, The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized,

Sales tax/ value added tax (VATYGoods and Service Tax(GST) is not received by the
Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commadity by
the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
_into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances, Incomes from other services are recognized
a¥ & as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added

Vi~ %, N\ Taxes (VAT) /Goods and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the
] Wk ]Iﬁ] d as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

¥
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(e)

Safe of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax /

VAT/Goods and Service Tax{(GST).
Inrerest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, lo the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Inlerest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.

Dividendy

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered,
Variable income is recognised on an ncerual basis in aceordance with the terms of the relevant

agreement,

Taxes

Taxes comprises current income tax and deferred tax.
Currend income fay

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period/year. Taxable profit differs
from *profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that arc never
taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income fax relating to ilems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised oufside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax ilems are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate,

7 _'_'i_.'-.;'_.-':.-;_1ﬂtfﬁ'l'J'Ec‘“f.]".T
[ . / n@;i, , \\'Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
'L'L~ wesniis | hiises of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
\ - reporting date,
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. except:

s When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
wansaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

s In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the lemporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferied tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits {including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assels
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combinalion
and, at (he time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss

s In respect of deductible femporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

' 3

0y

)

associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only (o the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will veverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed al
cach reporting date and reduced to the exient that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or pari of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the linbility is settled, based on tax rafes (and tax laws)

that have been enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting date.

Deferred 1ax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if'a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate (o the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of o business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OC!/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gams. All

‘other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

)
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Sales/ value added taves/goods and service tax paid on acquisition of assels or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amotnt of sales/ value added taxes/goods and
service 1ax paid, excepl:

o When the tax incurred on n purchase of assels or seryices is not recaverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

« When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of (ax recoverable from, or payable fo, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheel.

(I Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and

equipment.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. Property plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Such properties are classified {o the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other properly assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when o
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule 1l of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assels Uselul life considered
(SLM)
Building () Y ears
| Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Electrical insiallations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
| Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
Private Yehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years
T T Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
o U pAn item of propenty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
/, ' Qﬁ‘.? uf "x,&twumsimd upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
&\ M o hj?)wsal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
3 . ‘hétween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

" income statement when the asset is derecognized.
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

(2) Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, mensured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assels are carried at cost less any
accumulated  amortization and accumulated impairment  losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development cosis, are nol capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred,

The uselul lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective

basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of (he asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

(I} Borrowing cosls
Borrowing cost includes inferest expense as per Effective Interest Rate ( EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assels are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where Tunds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost, Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assels is

interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipls over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial

_——_ instrument.
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[gj:‘,ascs are classified as [inance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
. ‘owitership tansfer from the Company lo the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance

counts lenges are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance

lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the assel or assels, even i that right is nof explicitly

specified in an arrangement,

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Company has determined whether
the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of

transition.
Compeany as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease thal
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified us a finance lease.All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inceplion date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimuim lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
50 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company’s general palicy on the borrowing costs (See note 2.1.h). Contingent renfals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
assel Is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated uselul life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term, unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time patiern of the user’s benefit
even i the paymenis fo the lessors are not on that basis, or

(b} The payments to the lessor are structured to incrense in line with expected general

infation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. [f payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not

mel.

Company as a lessor

leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease receipt are recognised as income it the statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term unless cither:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem of the user's benefit
even if the receipt from the lessee are not on that basis, or

(b) The receipts from the lessee are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation Lo compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. If receipls
from the lessee vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.

Aease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periadic rate of

* ¥éturn on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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Stamp duties payable to local authorities on registration of lease agreements, are recognised as
prepaid expense and charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss on an equitable basis over the
lease term.

Conversion charges payable to local authorities on conversion of use of industrial plot for
hotel purposes, are recognised as prepaid expense and charged off to statement of profit and
loss an an equitable basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assels

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recovernble amount, the asset is considered impairéd and is written down to ifs recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
markel transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair

virlue indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a sieady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the markel in which the

assel is used,

Impairment lossesincluding impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously

" recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used lo determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
" recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
- yecoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
“depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such }
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reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assel is carried al a revalued

amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(n Provisions

Greneral

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as @ result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of

profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o
seltle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks

and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

IF the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a currenl
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific o the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to

settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. -

Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingenl assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually

certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an assel,

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence ar
non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past evenis where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount

cannol be made.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefiis

Relirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable (o the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the confribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, ther excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment

will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Wi .
i e '

||I .II 5 ||. 1 n:l:_i
N “expensed off at the time of payment of premium,

(. R& irement benefit in the form of graluity is a defined benefit scheme.Gratuity liability of
=1 O e iq:;_:pllu;.fecs is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
e close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is

=
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assel ceiling,

excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability).
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit (o
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rte to the net defined benefit liability or
assel. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements: and
» Nel interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respeetive trusts

Stiort-term and other long-term emplayee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected 1o be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured atl the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in

respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The company treats leave expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes, Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurementgains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
setilement for 12 months afier the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is

presented as non-current liability.
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(n)

Financial instromenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and @
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assels
Initiedl recognifion et measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets nol
vecorded at [air value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assels within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date. i.e., the dale that the Company commils

to purchase or sell the asset.

Stbsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, [inancial assels are classified in following
categories:

s Debt instruments al amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL)
« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

o Equity instruments in subsidiaries corried at cost

Pehi instrignents of amortised cosi

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant (o the Company, The difference between the transaction
amount and amortized cost in case of interest free loan fo subsidiaries based on the expected
repayment period is considered as ‘deemed investment on account of interest free loan to
subsidiaries’ (Refer Note 6(i)). After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. If there is any change in estimate for payment of loan
(provided that there was no error in original estimate) , difference in carrying amount and
repayment has been adjusted as retum on capital by the parent, based on condition/ situation
prevailing on that date. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or

/5 Toss,
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Dbt fustriment at FVTOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI eategory are measured initially as well as af
each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the ather
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit &
Loss. On derecognition of the assel, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassificd from the equity to Statement of Profit & Loss. Interest eamed whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as inferest income using the EIR method.

Debi instrinent af FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meel
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
“accounting mismatch®). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L,

Equity fnvestments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate
financial statements less impairments if any, Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company al
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance

sheet) when:

s The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

s The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to n third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (1) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferved control of the asset.

| dmipaivment of financial assets
| R

I sccordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and eredit
risk exposure:
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a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assel

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables:

The application ol simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each

reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, it credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. I, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant inerease in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Company reveris to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which resulis from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

e Al contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannol be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credil enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L.). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

e Financial asseis measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meels write-ofT criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is nol further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount® in the OCI.

“For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial

. @ “instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
' s iﬂj!l analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a

A timely basis.
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The Company does not have any purchased or originated cred it-impaired (POCI) financial
assets. i.., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilitfes

[nitial recognition and mreastrenent

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or s derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, n the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafis, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measuremnen!

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial linbilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the eriteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in (he statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial linbility as at fair value through profit and

loss.

Financial labilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant (o the Company. Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is ealeulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

' 'Ttifis category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 14.

L~
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(0}

(p)

(q)

Finmaneial guaraniee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether its
recognised insurance linbilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts, If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of

g insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire

deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

If a finaneial guarantee is an integral element of debts held by the entity, itisnot accounted for
separately.

Devecognition

A finaneial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liahility is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss,
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,

interest income, finance costs and tax expense.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or aceruals of past or fulure
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of
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(r)

Earnings Per Sharve (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted avernge number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit atributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all
the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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(s)

(i)

Recent accounting pronouncement issued but not yet effective upto the date of issuance of
financial statements

(i) Ind AS 116, Leases

Ind AS 116 — *Leases” was notified on 30th March 2019, which is applicable for the accounting
period beginning from 1st April 2019. For lessees, the standard eliminates the classification of
leases as either operating or finance, as required by Ind AS 17, and instead introduces a single lease
accounting model. Applying that model a lessee is required to recognize, (a) assels and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value and
(b) depreciation of leased assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement.
Lessor Accounting under Ind AS 116 will not be having any transitional impact on initial
recognition. Under Ind AS 17, the company was charging lease rental in statement of Profit and
loss. which would be charged as depreciation and finance cost under Ind AS 116, having a

favourable impact on EBITDA.

A lessor shall recognise lease paymenis from leases as income on either straight-line or another
systematic basis. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

« Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use

assel either ot

« Tts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted at lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

« An amount equal (o the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial
application.

The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of transitioning from old standard i.e Ind
AS 17 to new standard i.e Ind AS 116 and the transition approach.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This Appendix clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in Ind AS 12
when there is uncerlainty over income fax ireatments, In such a circumstance, an entity shall
recognise and measure its current or deferred tax asset or linbility applying the requirements in Ind
AS 12 based on taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates determined applying this Appendix. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact

of this Appendix,

(iii) Amendment to Tnd AS 12- Income Taxes

On March 30, 2019, the amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection
with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in

“Ijwofit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally

1fcqgni§¢d those past transactions or events.

The ,ﬁhﬁ;éndment is effective from annual period beginning from April 1, 2019. There Company is
currently evaluating the effect of this amendment,
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(iv)

Amendment to Ind AS 19- Employec Benefits

On March 30. 2019, the amendments to Ind AS 19, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity. to use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service
cost, or a gain or loss on seftlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April I,
2019, The Company does nat have any impact on account of this amendment.
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As at March 31, 2009 | k16T 10467
A ot March 31, 2018 Stk 049
Intangible assets under development
An ot Asm
Murch 31, 2009 Mnrch 31, 2018
s, T lakbs s In lakhs
Soltwviare imvplementation = il

{Thix sperce has been irtentianally fefi bfank)




Flewr Hinlels Privase Limbeld

Matuy to Nnanginl statvnscnti foc the yrar coadedl March 31, 2009

. Finangind ssseis
As i haal
Adarveh 30, 2009 hiweh 35 2008
Bt I dalcha Ha fiv Lk lna.
[i) Investmraiy
Fvestmieitls al ool
Unapuates] pmpuity shares of subsidiney cmpaniss al
ansl
153 077 Previcns Year; 35207T) equity shares of 0739 657398
Celsin Hatels Privine Limised of s 10 esch fully =il
3 280, B0 (Previons Y car 1R 2800000 equely shares LY ERE ] 1%11.54
o Iniwwa Hiogels & Beonis Biniiad of K | each
fully sl
£2,10,000 { Preveoas Yenr: £2, | 6,000) ety shares of 13, 2455) 13,4558
il Hinsels Private [imeled of R § ench fally
il
6140000 [ Prgvicnss etz 76,148 00409 equaly slsrcs 1511795 1 500795
af HHEA Hiacls Privabe Limsied of Ra. 1 each fwlly
).
35000000 [Previome Voemr; 250000 expwity slanres of 50 250
Oplirys Hlabele Privae Limised of s, | esels fudly puid
i1 40 [Previous Year - D01 10 eqiitly shsres of 1,147.52 24T AT
Dandhay [esorial 1) Linlied of R §060 sach fully prid,
Tavestueil im Llmited Linbiliy Partoceship (af o)
Frvvestmend in Meeereon Hotgls LLF 1.0 L0ty
Dreenarid frvestment fesuity precthon} am nocosnl of
Bivteret Tree lnmi In sebsillirics (Repshl)
Celsin Halels Privale Ll TA47 TAT
Tncvve Hlorfedi & Resoris Limaibed 4141 4742
Hyacingh Hosels Pravabe Limiled L 52150
Bos Hostels Private Limited 6347 6147
Bandllay Resors| P Lanited L7 177
T T T
Appregate book vilee ol quobel investinenls = -
Apsprepai ook vihee of unsiobed Eneimenls 41,395.30 4130530
Crirrenl . i
M- Currenl 41, 305.50 411530
d130530 411950
Tlse ibave imvestivent in subsidiaries nte pledged i Socinly sgnind birmwings
Asal Asal
Alarch 30, 2009 hiarch 3T, 201K
It i akihs Riinbkls
{1y Chitoer [Tmanginl aancts
Sexuitity Deponita [imiecyied, comisdered pood) MiELA3 154,26
ETTRA 35426
Inieseeer accrissd on deposits witls banks sl odhers 304 e LA
Figed Dieposita siidler Hon® 782 TaEL
77T TR

* Fixed depoits under lien me/mbes dheposit ien pinskad wilk banks ajstied gissmniees ivued in vonr of

wanrtis Groverminent depamments




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
MNaotes o financial sintemenis for ihe year ended March 31, 2019

7. Non-Currenl tax assels (net)

As al As al
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Its in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance Income Tix (net of provision for taxation} 217392 112.40
Toial 273.92 112.40
8. Other non-curreént assets
As ut Asai
Mareh 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Lnsecured considered pood
Capital Advances 87276 664.99
Others
Balance with statutory/ government authoritics 2381 23.81
Prepaid expenses 14597 107.91
Linamortized portion of security deposits 60047 G18.93
770,25 750,65
Tolal I!HJ.DI 1,415.64

(This space has been intentionalfy left blank)



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

B, Tnventories
{valued at lower of cost and nel renlisable value)

As Al As At
Mareh 31,2019 March 31, 2018
s ln lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 3834 53.26
Liguor and wine 30.55 15.88
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others . 76,42 49.29

4531 11843

Talal

As at March 31,2019 : Rs. 3.46 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 3.46 lakhs}) was recopnised ps provision

for inventories carried ot net realisable value
Refer footnote to Note 14 for inventories pledged.

(This space has been intentionally left Blenk)
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Fleny Hotels Private Limited

Notes 1o financinl statements fo- the vear ended Mareh 31, 2019

1. Financinl assels

Asal Asal
Mareh 31, 2019 Mavch 31, 2014
s in lakhs Rs in Inkhs

{11 Trade recelvaliles
Tendie receivishbes 111812 [ 170,35

1,118.12 [ 170,35
Teal-up for security details:
Trivde receivables
Unsseured, considened good 111812 [ 17035
Total 1,118.12 117035

Mo ek o other recetvalile mre due from directors or olher afficers of the company either
severally or jointly with any other person, Nor any trade or gther receivable are due from firms
ar private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director ar o member.
Trade receivibles are nen interest bearing and are generally on terms ol 30 1o 90 days from the

dnie of inviice.

(1) Cash amd eash equivalents

Asat
March 31, 2019
R b lubix

As il
March 31, 2018
R in lnkhs

Bulance with hanks
Oy current nocounts A68.016 131.20
Cogh o hand 1o, 3.3
A 74,00 236,53
Asal A=l
Mareh 31, 2001% Mharch 31, 2018
s in lalihs s in Inkhs
{iii) Loans
Unsecured, consideved good
Loasits sl andvanee to subsidiories 4.584347 318042
454347 3. 18042
- —
11, Oiher enrrent asseis
As Al As Al
Narch 30, 2009 March 31, 2008
s in lakhs R in lokhs
Advances recovernble
=Dithers, considered good D830 169,44
-Oithers, considered doubiful .78 §.78
02712 17819
Provision for doubi il sdvances 8.75 8.75
LILRHE 169,44
Unbilled revenue 1 0,22
Balaice with siotulory’ government sulhorilies 544,71 05,71
Prepaid expenses 154.82 102.68
Unnmaortized portion of security deposits 2.3 .30
P T20.946 429.91
1.639.34 599,35

il
A




leur Natels Private Linied
Mabys | Miaiiclal staiements far te vear ebed A1 31, 2

12, Eguity Share capital
Authirieed Share Capitul Exqubty alimies

e ol shares s in lalklis
Asal Aprdl 1, 2007 1.2 i 0 R 120 000, 2N
Inerzaseddeciease) tirngy il veas it .
As al March 31, HHE [EETTTTUETRE 1 20,0000
Diceiise Acdeenemie ) during fhe v _ - .
A ot Wlarch 31, 22 2 00, D 13 1,004.00

Termadrights attachel 1 eguity shares

‘e Company has andy oae class of equity sleres kaving por valie of Rs. 10 per share, Eocl) lolder of equity shaes (s enfitled in ome
vode por share. I tie event of hguadation of the Capnpany, the tildets ol expiity shirit will e entiiled 1o seeeive ronsinne ausely of
Ve Cennpuasiy, afier drstibution of ofl preferential smowts. The distribution will be i propartion o the number of cqely thases bkl by

the shirchodilers

lasweil equity cagilial
ety shapes of Re 10 ench haned, subseriliod and filly paid N, ol dhiares T in ks
Assi Apeil 1, 2007 59,184,153 SUIRAY
Increusedueerense | dump the yeal 3 I
Asat March 31, 2008 50,284,253 L 02865
Iieremsedecreme ) chmng ibe year - .
Ax i Maveh 31, 2009 W_ 5,918,631
Shmres Deld by Disldiig company
' Asal Aa i
Mlnrch 31, 2008 March 3, J018H
N, ol b s R iy lakilin Pl sleares Hs o Hakilis
Izimon Tree Hotels Linsibed AT ANR 143745 ML ATARH LTl
[hetails of shirehiliers hdding mice than 5% shares in the Company
Asal A Al
Alareh 31, 3019 Alwreh 31, 2018
I ' P Nin,_of shares i el M, o shares =% ehil
Fagukiy shaves of Js, 10 goch fally podd
Lagiisn Tree Habels Limied 24374 AR 57.0%% AT AT
AP Siratepic Real Bxiate Mool N.Y 24.911,753 i 14000758 420

The Company ha 1o sived Bories Share, Shine iy contideration other lan Cash and has ol boughs back shaeee during the ol of Ryve yewrs
immedintely preceding: fht reportig date,

i spervce B ey esitriunely Al Maovuky




Flrmr Hubels Private Linsiiol
3, 2k

Pides o (Tminclal stiensents e e year ended Ma
L, Dher equity
— T ———
Sermritivs Preaniom Hs in kakhs
As st April 1, 3017 #9,421.38
Iceusuidecrease) during il year .
A al Varch 31, 2018 942028
[isuenne/idecrense) durmye (e venr -
Asal March M, 29 gd!l.ll
Relatned Ewrmiogs x i lakhy
AxarApril 1, 207 424165
|Lcvss K ihiee W R ]
As gl March 31, 118 L0458
Lirgs fior the yies (1R
As ol March 31, 209 368172
A wl Aual
Mtl_nﬂ L0919 Manch 302018
Rinlsble  Boinlshs
Qiber reserves
Seowmities Premisi 411 942228
Letmmed Earningd 684,72 1804, 51
H.Il]_w lﬁ,‘lii L1

Seewrhies preminmi Socisities premiuin conapirises pecmiii receivid o s of shares.
Tttained enviings: Resained eaines comprise balanees ol profit ad hoss at each yeir end.

if (¥ Fiiw spwree by bevtt teteniranafly ot Dok

ﬁ(f




Fleny Hotels Privaie Limited
Noles to financial statements for ihe year ended March 31, 2019

14, Finaneial Liabilitics

As at Asmt
Mareh 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2018
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs
{i) Borrowings
Non-currenl borrowings
Term Loans
Loans from Banks (Secured)
Yeu bank Limited { Refer note 1, 2.3 & 6 below) A1, 745.85 15917.12
Kotk Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 3 below) 594288 5.942.88
Vehicle loang (Refer note & balow) &i).56 36,78
Total non-enrrent bovrowings 37,7449.29 21.896.78
Current maturity of luans from Banks
Ves bank Limited {Refernote |, 2, 3 & 6 below) 00,00 260,00
Vehiche loans (Reler note 4 below) 21.M 12.10
Curvent maturity of loans 521.M 27210
legs: Amount elubbed under “other current linancial lisbilities” (521.34) {272.100

Net current borrowings

Term loans
11 Rupee term loan | from Yes Bank Limited was taken during financial year 2015-16 and carries interest rale iri) 6

months MCLR + 0.90% (Currently 9.80%), The loan is repayable in seattered gumierly insiallment beginning from
April 2017. Interest is payable monthly as and when due. Il is sccured by

a) Exclusive charge on all immoveable assets of Lemon tree Premier, Hyderabid,

b} Exclusive chirge on all moveable fixed pasets ard current sssets both present and future of LTP, Hydembad.

¢} Corporate guarantes of Lemon Tree Holels Limited.

d) Minimum asset cover of 1.5x to be maintained throughout the tenor of bank's loan.

2) Rupee term Joan 11 from Yes Bank Limited was taken during financinl year 2016-17 and carries inlerest rate @ 6
Maonths MCLR + 0.90% (Currently 9.80%). The loan is repayable in scattered quarierly installment beginning from
July 2014, Interest s payable monthly as and when due, It is secured by

a) Exclusive charge on all immoveable assets of Lemon tree Premier, H yerabad.

b} Exclusive charge on all moveable Mxed assets and current assets both present and future of LTP, Hyderabad.

¢) Corporate guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited,

d) Mininwm asset cover of 1,5% to be maintained throughout the tenor of bank's loan,

37 Rupee term loan 11 from Yes Bank Limited was token during financial year 2016-17 and corries interest rate @ 6
Months MCLR + 1.15% (Currently 9,80%). The loan is repayable in 44 scattered quarterly installment beginning
after a moraforium period of 36 months. Intercst is payable monthly as and when due. 11 is secured by :

a) First charge on all immoveable nssets of |emon Tree Hotel, Sector-60 (both present and future),

b) First charge on all moveable fixed nnd current asscls of Lemon Tree Hotel, Sector-60 (both present and fiture).

¢) Escrow of all receivables of Lemon Tree Hotel, Sector-60 including security deposits,

d) Corporate guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited.

41 Vehicle loan are seeured by hypothecation of underlying motor vehicle acquired out of such loans. Rate of
interest of the loan ranges from 10.50% to 13%. The loan is repaid on agreed monthly installments.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Modes fo financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

5) Rupee term loan | from Kotak Mahindra Bank was taken during financial year 2017-18 and carries interest rate (@
6 months MCLR plus 50 bps (Currently 9,35%). The loan is repayable in 48 seallered quarterly installment
beginning after a moratorium period of 36 months. Interest is payable monthly as and when due.The loan is secured
by:

a) Exelusive charge on all existing and future current assets of Red Fox Hotel at Sector-6(), Gurgaon.

b) Minimum asset cover af 1.2x to be maintained throughout the tenor of bank’s loan as per valuation aceepted by
bank.

¢) Subservient charge over all existing and future current assets of the borrower except current assets of the
borrower's commercial space at Sector-60, Gurgaon on which bank has exclusive charge.

d) Equitable Mortgage by way of exclusive charge on the on the proportionate share of land and building of
commercial space of the borrower at Sector-60, Gurgaon.

¢) Exclusive charge over Moveable Fixed assets of commercial space at Sector-60, Gurgaon.

6) Rupee term loan 1V from Yes Bank Limited was taken during financinl year 2018-19 and carries interest rate (@ 6
months MCLR + 0,65% (Currently 9.80%). The loan is repayable in scattered quarterly installment beginning from
April 2021, Interest is payable monthly as and when due. 1t is secured by:

#) First charge an all immoveable assets of Lemon tree Premier, Kolkata, Lemon Tree Premier, Pune and Lemon

Tree Hotel Sector 61
b} First charge on all immoveable assets of Lemon tree Premier, Kolkata, Lemon Tree Premier, Pune and Lemon

Tree Hotel Sector 6,
¢) Escrow of all receivables of the above mentioned Hotels including security deposits.

d) Corporate guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited.

(This space has been imentfonally left blank)




Fleur Holels Private Limiled
Noies to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Noles to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

15, Provisions

As al Asal
Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs in lalihs Rs in lakhs
Provision for pratuity 161 0.55
1061 9.55
Current - 1.92
Mon-cument 10.61 7.63
As ol As al
Mareh 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for leave benelits 28.43 18.95
Current 28.43 18.95
Non-current & =
Todal current 2843 20.87
Total non-corvent 161 7.63

&l el (This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Privale Limited
Notes Lo financinl statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

16, Deferred tax linbilities (nef)

As al Asal
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, plant and equipment and intangible nssets 2,542.15 1,932.09
fevaluation of Jand 417.04 416.46
Deferred tax linbilities 2,959.19 2.348.55
Impact ol expendilure charged to the statement of profit and loss in 25.12 27.18
the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes on
payment basis
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 292 2.89
MAT credit entitlement 957.77 951717
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses carried
forward 1,687.47 994,80
Gratuity 354 3.6
Non moving invenlory 1.15 114
Leave compensation 9.49 6.27
Security deposits 11.49 .90
Deferred tax nssels 2,698.95 2,000.11
Deferred tax liabilities !net! 26024 3844
e —_— memmTe —

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for

Mareh 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018;

March 31,2009 March 31, 2018
Loss before tax (308.97) (683.08)
Tax rate 33.38% 33.06%
Tax at statutory income lax rate (103.15) (225.85)
Effect of incomes taxable al nil/lower rate (0.28) |.B7
Effect of non-deductible expenses (5.33) (f.58)
Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ required to tax under - (14.06)
Income tax charee/ (credit) in respect of earlier year
Other adjustments 11.30 {101.35)
Net (89.16) (345.97)
As per profit and loss account == (89.16) (345.97)

j’




Flewr Hotels Privade Limited

Motes bo fnancial sialements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

17, Finnneinl linbilities

As al At
Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2008
Rs in lakhs Its in lakhs
{i) Short term borrowings
Lo from Related Parly 660,00 -
(LRI -
*Lonng bear interest mte of [0.25% and is repayvable on demand,
{i) Trade Payables
~bdiers and small enlerprises T4.86 -
<Oilier than Micro med small enterprises 1,582.11 1, 427.15
Tuotal 2,656.97 1 427.15
(i) Other Gnancinl liabilities As al Akt
Mareh 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2018
R in lakhs s in Inklis
Current maturities of long-teem bormowings 521.M 2710
Interest neerved bul ol due on borrowings 3094 -
Security Deposits 43.: -
Book overdinfi H18.31 BlLob
Payable for capitnl poods 445602 2.324.45
Tutal 5.870.02 2.678.23
18, Other eurrvent linbilities
Asat Az
Murch 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Addvance Fron custoners 13,78 164,19
Statutory dues 1369 L1819
Total A62.47 24238

{This space has been imtentionally lefi blak)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

29,

Significant acconnting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asscis and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure ol contingent liabilities.
Uneertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a malerial
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities alTected in fulure periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has taken certain land and land and building on long term lease basis. The Company
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the
lepse term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the property and the fair value of the
assel. that it does not have all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and
aceounis for the contracts as operating leases,

Further, the Company based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the respective
agreements decided that wherever the escalations (generally 15% every 3 years or 20% every 4
years) are aligned to the average expected general inflation of the lease term period, operating lease
payments are nol required to be provided on a straight-line basis over the lease term as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss and in other cases (including structured payment lerms),
operaling lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term in the statement

of profit and loss.

Estimates and assumpiions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
other valuation techniques, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is nol feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See Note 33 for further disclosures.

Further, the management has estimated the expected future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset of interest free loans given to subsidiaries which is repayable on demand
(generally 30 years-40 years) based on the financial position of the respective Subsidiaries and

. vepayment period of the borrowings taken by these Subsidiarics.

-
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the assel base of the Company.
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
residual values of Company's assets are determined by the management al the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end, The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact
their life, such as changes in technology.
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30. Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratity plan (funded). The eratuity plan is governed by the
Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is
entitled 1o specific benefit, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service
and salary at retirement age, The fund has the form of a frus! and it is governed by the Board of
Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of
Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment
strategy. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred
to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts
on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit eredit method.

R, in lukliy

Maveh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Gratuity plan 10.61 9.55
Taotal 10.61 0.55
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assels are as Sollows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unquoted investmenis:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC - o 100% [ 0%
Total 100% 100"

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown
brelonw:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Discount rate: Yo Yo

Pension plan 7.00% 7.30%
Future salary increases:

Fension plan 5.00% 5.00%a
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Yenrs Yenrs
Pension plan

Male (1] 60
Female 0l o0

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as ot March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:

Ry in lakhs
Maireh 31, March 31, Marech 31, March 31,
2019 2019 2019 2019
Assumplions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level | % increase | % decrease |% increase 1% decrease
i d be
Tafpect ook dhelihEd bt 0.88 0.94 0.95 0.90

obligation
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Rs. in leckhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2018 2018 2018
Assumplions Discount rate Future sa!n-ry increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease %5 increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit 071 0.75 076 0.73

obligation

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions oceurring al the end of

the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in fulure years:

Rs. in lakhs
Duration ( Years) For the year ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

| 6.43 5.54

2 5.27 4.69

3 4.52 3.90

4 4.04 3.32

5 3.65 2.85

Above 5 11.70 9.42

Total expeeted payments 35.61 29.72

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2018: 5 years),

31, Commitments and contingencies

n,  Leases
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating leases on hotel buildings, with lease terms between twenty
three twenty five and twenty nine years.

The Company has recognised Rs. 1,012.79 lakhs (March 31, 2018, Rs. 971.99 lakhs) as expense in
staternent of profit & loss towards minimum lease payment.
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Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at year endare, as follows:

Ry in lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Within one year |,085.52 1,032.23
After one year but not more than five years 4,947.79 4,767.89
More than five years 32,632.96 13.783.67

38,666.27 39.583.79

b, Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on eapital aceount and not provided for:

At March 31, 2019, the Company had commitments of Rs.5,388.15 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs11,567.70
lakhs)

¢, Contingent liabilities

{i) Legal claim contingency
Rs. in fakis

March 31, 20019 | March 31, 2018

b. [Service Tax 92,38 921.38

The Company's pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Service Tax and
Sales/VAT tax authorities, The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where
applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to
have o materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

(i) Pledge ol shaves

Pledge of 51% of the shareholding held in Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term
loan facility availed by Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited . Amount of Loan outstanding as on March 31,

2019 of Rs. 13,173.25 lakhs
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. Financial gnaraniees

The Company has issued [inancial guarantees 10 barks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities
availed by its group companies for construction of new hotel project, In accordance with the policy of
the Company (refer note 2.2(n) the Company has d esignated such guarantees as ‘Tnsurance Contracts’.
The Company has classified financial guarantees as contingent liabilities. These financial guarantees are
an intepral element of debis held by entities, hence has not been accounted for separately. Accordingly,
there are no assets and liabilities recognized in (he balance sheet under these contracts. Refer below for
details of the financial guarantees issued:

fex. in feakehes

Loan Cuaranlees Lan Guarantees |
Outstanding as on Outstanding 45 on
tas on March | March 31, | as on March | March 31,
31, 2019 2019 31,2018 2018
a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of - 670.39 - 2313.52

eunrantees issued by company s bankers
b. |Guarantee given on behalf of Hyacinth 13,027.35 16,105.00 14,089.50 | 6,105.00
Hotels Private Limited

¢. |Guarantee given on behalf of Celsia 4,613.39 5,972.00 5,185.71 5,972.00 |
Hotels Private Limited

i, IGuarantee given on behalf of Inovoa JA51.00 3,500.00 3.486.00 3,500.00

Hotels & Resorts Limited

y

(e} Note on Provident Fund:

Rased upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, the Company found numerous interpretation
issues and thus is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in the
case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (11), West Bengal in
velation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of “basis wages" of the relevant
employees for the purpose of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees Provident
Fund & Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952.
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32. Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Holding company

Subsidiary company

Fellow subsidiary companics

Limited Liability Partnership

Kev Management Personnel

Enterprises owned or signilicantly influenced by
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding company has
Significant Influence

- Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Celsia Hotels Private Limited

- Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
- TORA Hotels Private Limited

- Ophrys Hotels Private Limited

- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
- Bandhav Resorts Private Limited

- Begonia Hotels Private Limited
- Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
- Meringue Holels Private Limited

- Mezereon Hotels LLP

- Mr. PatanjaliGovindKeswani(Chairman & Managing
Director)

- Mr. Sachin Doshi(Director)(UptoAugust 10,2017)

- Mr.Niten Malhan{Director){upto August |3, 2018)

- Mr. Rattan Keswani{ Director)

- Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka(Independent Director)

- Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal{independent Director)(Upto
April 1, 2017)

- Mr. Dominic James Doran{Director)

- Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf{ Divector)

- Mr. Brian Lap Hei Hung(Direcior)

-Mr. Paramartha Saikia( IndependentDirector)

-Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha{ Additional Director)

(w.e.f August 13, 2018)

- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

=Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

4
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Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have laken place during

the vear:

¢ Mr. Inder Pal Balra

: Ms. Pooja Arom

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secrelary

g
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year

Rs in lakhs
ey Enlerprises
Manageme owned or
ni significantly E!il:;l]li:il:t' in
i 1 I
Transactions with Related Year Holding s Fellow, || kerseads Inn“'f'm Holding
Party lod C Subsidiaries | subsidiarie by key o 2 W
e . i s management npeay
Skl o sigmificant
per - infMuenee
their
relnlives

Reimbursement of expenses
paid on behall of party
fora Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-19 " .09 5 = = x

31-Mar-18 - n.78 - . e =
Hfmflhm' Resorts Privale 11-Mar-19 . 0,00 . - . a
Limited

31-Mar-13 F 340 - - - -
Reimbursement of expenses
inenrred on company's behall
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-19 4.35 - : - - -

31-Mar-18 .73 - . : - -
H}Jacinlh Hotels Private 11-Mar-19 . = ~ - x
Limited

31-Mar-18 € 11.53 - = = =
Loans (given)
Celsia Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-19 - 49.65 2 " > i

31-Mar-18 - 167.00 : 2 = =
l:!m:ua Hotels & Resorls 1-Mar-19 - - - . - =
Limited

31-Mar-18 2 115.69 . = Z ;

=)
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Key | Enterprises
Manageme owned or L
il signilicantly L“l:ﬂr:‘:t i
. Fellow Personnel infuenced
Transactions with Relaled Year Halding subaddintin | akaidieds by Halding
Party ended Company ' company has
. rAnagement | - nificant
PRESOSRE] Sx iEl‘Iu:nu
iheir
relatives

Hyacinth Hotels Privaie . - = = =
Limited 31 -Mar-19 335,00

Jl-Nar-18 2R0.00 - z 5 =
lora Hotels Privige Limited 31-Mar-19 N 1,194.32 T i ’ -

3l-Mar-18 . 2,948.20 . v = =
Baruthay Resorts Private - 2 = .
Limited Il-Mar-19 130.00

Il-Miar-18 . 131,70 - - B
Repayment of Loan Given
Celsia Hotels Private Limited J1-Mar-19 120000 £ < - -

Fl-Mar:18 - 132.06 - - = =
lr!lwllm Holels & Resons 3 Marel - . Z = = =
Limited

3l-Mar-18 z [ 80824 - = - -
Hyacingh Heotels Private = = . =
Limited 3l-Mar-19 230,00

Jl-Mar-18 = 10,104.35 - = = .
lora Hotels Private Limited J=-Mar-19 - - T - - -

Il-Muor-18 = 15,057.95 - - - -
Efmq_ihmr Resons Privale I Mar-19 - - n i % :
Lirriited

Ji-Mur-1% - 131378 - - E z
Loans (taken)

sy L £ _ r = z,

Meringue Hivels Private 3-Mar-19 2.460.00

Limited

F-Mur-1K
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Key Enterprises
Muanageme owned or
i significantly Enlrrpriuc in
Fellow Personnel influenced which
Transactions with Related Year Holding . Holding
. Subsidiavies | subsidinrie hy key ;
Party entled Conpuny company has
5 management ;
signilficand
personnel or
: influence
iheir
relnlives
Munakin Resorts Private ; - - - .
Limited A 450.00
3-Mlor-18 5 T C L, -
Repayment of Loan (aken .
Meringue Hotels Privaie - 3 - . -
Limited 31-Mar-19 2,250.00
Jl-Mar-18 4 J 2 - =
Muiagement Fees paid (Net
ol TDS)
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Jl-Mar-19 | 2.476.52 . . E €
31-Mar-1§ | 1.652.84 ' = = z 1
Training expenses paid (net
of TDS)
Mind Leaders Leaming Incia
Private Limited i it ' : : : : 66.15
F1-Mar-18 = # - - - 47,32
Renumeration Paid
Inder Pal Batra 31-Mar-19 S4.41
31-Mar-18 - 1 = 38.89 . g
Pooja Bakshi Al-Mur-19 11.73
l-Mar-18 1 7.78 - &

Subscription to Share Capital

of the Company/LLFP

V
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Key Enterprises
Manageme .tm’neil nr Enterprise in
ni signilicantly which
Transactions with Related Year Haolding pi iy llr.l I?w i Eacauiiny iniianeed Haolding
4 Subsidiaries | subsidiarie by key
Party ended Company compuny has
% management S
3 signilieant
personnel or influence
iheir
relntives
H!uu_ilsnv Resorts Private 11-Mar-19 ) ) . ) ‘
Limmited
30-Mar-18 - 1,313.78 - - = .
Celsin Hotels Private Limiled Al-Mar-19 . . - — - ;
3l-Mar-18 - 97,06 - - . -
Inovoa Hotels & Resorls - - = T i
Limited 31-Mur-19
31-Mar-18 - 1,710.24 - = - -
Hyacinth Holels Private
Limited 31-Mar-19 2 - - - - -
I-Mar-18 - 1,999.33 = = - -
lora Haotels Private Limited 31-Mar-19 - - . - - i
J1-Mar-18 - 14,557.95 - - . Z
Security Deposit Given
during the year
T?m.""" Real Estrtes Private 1-Mar-19 - - - - = :
Limited
31-Mar-18 - = - - 192.00
Advance given to the party
Toucan Real Estates Privite = = - = z
o 3l ’
Limited I-Mar-19 142.64
31-Mar-18 = - - - - -
Gunrantees Given for foan
taken by the party
Hyacinih Hotels Private - . . 7 =
Limited 31-Mar-19 16, 10500
- | 31-Mar-18 = 16,105.00 = = - -

V
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Key Enlerprises
Manageme owned or Entbrprise i
ni significantly
Fellow Personnel inMuenced which
Transactions with Related Year Holding A 2 Holding
: Subsidiaries | subsidiarie by key 4
Parly cndded Company company hias
5 management 5
significant
personnel or o
their
relntives

Celsia Hotels Private Limiled A1-Mur-19 = 5972.00 5 - - 1

Jl-Mar-18 - 597200 - - - -
h!mrran Hotels & Resons 1 1-Mar-19 - 3.500.00 = - = =
Limited

IL-Mar-18 = 3,500.00 = 2 2 -
Guarantee Taken for Loan
received by the Company
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 3] -Mar-19 | 18,000.00 - . = . =

Jl-Mor-18 1 8,000.00 = - - £
Amount Received on belall
of the Company
Celsin Holels Private Limited 31 -Mar-19 = L79 z E = =

I -Mar-18 - - - g = =
Il!w_ﬂa Holels & Resorts 31-Mar-19 - 0.12 = = - =
Limited

Jl-Mar-18 - s - & = =
Mightingale Hotels Private = P . . -
Limited 31-Mar-19 0.76

Jl-Mar-18 = = E - = =
Intevest Paid (G ross)
Meringue Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 - = J0.98 - ¥ -
Limied

31-Mar-15 = n 5 - = 2
tanakin Resons Private 11 -Mar-19 - = 340 w = E

Linvited "1

-8
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Key Enterprises
Manageme owned or . .
i significanily I'"I:_r;':l:t i
Fellow Personnel influenced
Trnllslclin:::lth Related :,T:[ c}[l,:m“! Subsidiaries | subsidiarie i iy mlluh:lin?mj
Y . pany 5 management it
signilicani
personnel or
inMuence
Lheir
relatives
J1-Mar-18 = ' ’ - = =
Amount patd on behall of the
party
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-19 3.94 - 7 - - -
Il-Mar-18 = - = = : T
Canary Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 - - 014 = - o
31-Mar-18 = = = m x =
Balances outstanding at the
year end- Loans given
Celsiz Hotels Privale Limiled 31-Mar-19 - - " = . =
31-Muor-18 - L35 - = z .
:-Ifl}'al':in!h Holels Private 1 Mar-19 - 771.98 - - = -
Amited
J1-Mar-18 5 . 98 5 - - 3
lora Hotels Private Limiied 31-Mar-19 - 3242.16 e T = =
31-Mar-18 - 23,75 . 5 = -
Bandhay Resosts Privale
Linilied R i 529.43 :
31 -Muar-18 - 39034 - = = -
Balances outstanding at the
year enid- Loans taken
h-!cring-,u: Hotels Privale 31 Mar-19 - : 2000 ¥ g 3
Limited
30-Muor-18 - ~ - = = :
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Key Enterprises
Managemse owned or Enferpivise in
it significantly which
i ith Related Y Holdin Fellow Personnel infuenced Holding
ear
rauEact ﬂ:::::‘ e il Cumpmfy Subsidiavies | subsidiarie by lu:}'t , | company ins
; 5 AN EEn e j significant
purmn{ml e influence
their
relulives

Manakin Resorts Private 2 1-Mar-19 . B . i
Limited gl 450.00

31-Mar-18 - = - - - .
Balances outstanding af the
yenr end- (Credit)/ Debit
Leron Tree Hotels Limited J-Mar-19 | (2,476.52)

31-Mar-18 | (69.52) z - ? : ¥
Inder Pal Batra 31-Mar-19 (0.7%)

31-Mar-18 3 = 8 (0.59) : )
Miud Lt‘lirdk!_l's Learning Indin 3 1-Miir-19 - . = = = 2.36
Privaie Limited

31-Mar-18 . = - = : 14.59
Toucan Real Esates Private 11-Mar-19 134,64
Limited T

31-Mar-18 = = - - 2 -
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Terms and conditions of (ransactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties al the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2018: INR Nil).
This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with refated parties
The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year,

33, Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and
provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criterin for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity

instrument

a, Financial Assets (other than equity investment/ deemed investment in subsidiarvies
carried al cost)
Rs. in lakhs

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

R Amortised . Amortised

FVTPL Cont FVTPL Cost
Financial Assels
Trade Receivables - 1,118,112 - 1,170.35
Security Deposits ) 5
(non-current) 360.33 = 33428
Other bank balances - 72.82 - 72.82
Cash and Cash =
Equivalests 7 474.06 ) s
Interest accrued on ) 12,16
deposit with banks ) 39.06 ]
Loans {current) 454347 JIR0.42
Total Financial
Asgets (other than
equity investment/ 5
deemed investmeni 5 6,607.86 i 4G4
in subsidinries
carried af cost)

Note: The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at
cost in accordance with Ind AS 101 and Ind AS 27,
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b, Finnncial Liabilities
Rs. in lakls
March 31, 20019 March 31, 2018
FVTPL Am?msed FVTPL ﬁnmrtllsed
Cost Cost
Financial
Liabilities
Borrowings 38,930.63 J 22,168.88
Trade Payables i 2,656.97 1,427.14
Other Current
Financial 5,348.68 2.406.12
Liabilities B i
Tutal Finnneial SE O
Liabilities - 16,936.28 = 200204
¢. Fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
(ransaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company calegorizes assets and liabilities measured al fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

follows:

i) Level |
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

i) Level2
Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.
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The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Company's assels and
linhilities:

Financial assets and linbilities measured at fir value
R i fakhs

March 31, 2019
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
 Financial invesiments as FVTPL . . 5
March 31, 2018
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments as FVTPL = . -

34  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support ils operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market rvisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of inferest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt abligations with floating
interest rates, The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interesi rates.

£a -
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R lir ferkhis

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Variable rate borrowings 38,848.73 22.120.00

Fixed rate borrowings £1.90 48.88

Interest rale sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on [loating rate borrowings, as

follows:

Rs. In Taklis

Pavilculire Increase/deerease in basis Effect on profit
points hefore tax

March 31, 2019

INR 50 157.15

INR -30 {157.15)
March 31, 2018

INR 50 97.50

INR -50 (97.50)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Muetuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company has no expasure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contraet, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from ils operating activitics
(primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual eredit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in

terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
viilue of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Company does not hold collateral as

security.

|r 6. ) ) 2
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R in fekhs

Ageing March 31, Marveh 31,
2019 2018
Not due - ;
0)-60 days past due 562,12 699.15
61-120 days past due 299,86 166,83
121-180 days past due 76.10 133.45
180-365 days past due 7748 149.53
365-730 days past due 102.56 1764
more than 730 days = 3:55

Provision for donbtful debts (including provision for expected credif loss)

Aoeli Mareh 31, March 31,
BEING 2019 2018

Not due -

0-60 days past due I
61-120 days past due - -
121-180 days past due » -
180-365 days past due - .
365-730 days past due . s
more than 730 days ! -

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debis - Trade receivables(including provision for
expected credit loss)

March 31,

March 31, 2019 2018

Provision at beginning =
Addition during the year -
Reversal during the year -

Utilised during the year =

Provision at closing

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Loans and deposits(including provision for
expected credit loss)

March 31,2019 | MR ID
Provision at beginning 8.75 8.75
Addition during the year - -
Reversal during the year = =
: | 'Utilised during the year - - ¢/

. !f r||]

(r Provision at closing 8.75 8.75
(= |'. : =11
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(b) Financial instruments and eash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned lo each counterparty. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet al 31 March 2009 and 31

March 2018 is the carrying amount as given in Note 10,

Liguidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash eredit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respeet (o refinancing its debt and coneluded it to be low. The Company has
nceess Lo a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
aver with existing lenders. As at March 31, 2019, the company had available Rs.3,860 lakhs (March

31, 2018: 20,500 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. In lakhs
On demanid LA ANAR. iy 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
muonihs mionihs

Year ended - =
March 31,2019
Borrowings 660,00 113.29 407.95 7.935.T6 20.813.53 38.930.63
Trade and other 2.656.96 ! ) ) : 2.656.96
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities(Other than 5.348.68 - - - 5.348.68
current maturity) i A B

H,605.6:4 113.39 407.95 7.935.76 20.813.53 46,936.27
Year ended
March 31, 2018
Borrowings - 3202 240.08 3.891.77 | 8.005.00 22,168.88
Trade and other 1,427.14 - = = - 1,427.14
payables
Other Financial 2,406.12 - - = - 2,406.12
Liabilities(Other than
current maturity)

383326 321.02 240.09 3.891.77 18,005.00 26,002.14
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35 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includesissuedecuity capital, share
premium and all otherequityreservesatiributable lo the equityholders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is lo maximise the sha reholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makesadjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Companymayadjust the dividendpayment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, whichis net debtdividedby total
capital plus net debt. The Companyincludeswithin net debl, interestbearingloans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. In lakhs
Maeh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Borrowings (Note 14) 38.930.63 22, 168.88
Trade payables (Note 17) 2,656.97 1,427.14
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 474.06 236.53

Net debt 41,113.54 2335049
Total capital 99.035.63 0925545
Capital and net debt 140,149.17 12261494
Gearing ratio 29% 19%

In otder to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
mims o ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings

that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and

borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended Mareh 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

36. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments™.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as per
the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments™.

s Mfmﬁminn about major customers
=
|

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue Y

1 " [}
2N LG )
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37. Deails of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs. in Lakhs
March31, | Marchdl,

2019 2018
the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any|  74.86 Nil
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of  section 16 of the Nil Nil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Aet, 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Miero Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting vear; and
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

38. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are
any material foreseeable losses.
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39,  There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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